
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

JULY 25, 2022 
OFFICIAL MINUTES 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Stan Kolasa called the July 25, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Members present 
were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Gretchen Barrett, and John Ganfield.  Also present City 
Planner Cindy Nash, Council Liaison Jim Zajicek and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren.  Guests present 
were Scott Dahlke, Jim and Rhonda DiOrio. 

Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

Approval of Minutes from the June 27, 2022, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the June 27, 2022, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Citizen’s Forum 
None 

Public Hearing 
None 

Unfinished Business 
River Inn—11220 River Road NE and 11201 Church Street NE 

Nash explained that revised plans for the River Inn project were received last week and that the variance 
applications had been submitted for the August Planning Commission meeting.  She stated that there are 
no comment memos from the engineer and herself as there was a lack of time to review the revised site 
plans. 

Nash asked Scott Dahlke, engineer for the applicant, to explain the revised site plan. 

Dahlke explained that the revised plans are improvements from past plans and that the number of variances 
required has been reduced.  He directed the members to the site plan of the two properties and explained 
that the house and detached garage would be removed from the Church Street property.  At this time, they 
are unsure of where the house and detached garage will be relocated.  The Church Street property would 
then become a parking lot with access from the current parking area located along the northern portion of 
the River Inn property and access from Church Street.  At this time, there would not be an access drive 
from the south on River Road.  There would still be an access drive for WestAir, but it would not include 
access to the River Inn property.  A fence would be constructed along the western property line.  In addition, 
there would be six angled parking spots along River Road on the southern property line. 

Dahlke then explained the variances that had been submitted for the August meeting. 

• Less parking stalls than what is required.  There are 114 stalls required based on his calculations
and there would only be 55 provided.  This is 49 percent (49%).

• Parking stalls would have direct access from the street.  The ordinance states that off-street parking
areas shall have access from driveways and not directly from a public street.

• Parking stalls will be less than 10 feet from the property line.
• Parking stalls will be less than 10 feet from the building.



• Impervious coverage will exceed 75 percent (75%).  He has it calculated at 80.5 percent (80.5%).  
He said that the applicant is trying to maximize parking areas and that the impervious coverage 
requirement is something he has only seen in Hanover. 

Dahlke pointed out the service area map and the landscaping that is planned.  He explained that the pavilion 
building has been expanded slightly, by about 20 feet to the west, because the bathrooms have increased to 
four in total, there will be a basement area for storage, and then a bar with open space.  Schendel asked if 
they planned to cook out of the pavilion.  Dahlke replied that they were not going to cook out of the building 
and would only have the bar.  Barrett asked if the pavilion would be seasonal.  Dahlke replied that only part 
of it would be seasonal, otherwise it would be operating year-round. 

Ganfield asked if the parking lot would be one way in and one way out.  Dahlke said that it will be a two-
way entrance.  Ganfield asked if they had considered connecting to the City parking lot.  Nash replied that 
would cause the applicant to lose parking stalls.  Dahlke agreed saying that two stalls would be lost if that 
occurred. 

Kuitunen asked if there were any state regulations related to the proposed angled parking on River Road.  
He is concerned with site lines as people are coming around the curve and others are backing out.  Nash 
said that would be a question for Jennifer Edison, the City Engineer.  Dahlke said there is a complicating 
factor of an electrical pole with overhead lines which is driving what can be done. 

Schendel said that a speed limit reduction would be helpful. 

Kolasa said that currently the parking spots on River Road are two spots closer to the building and the 
angled parking would clean up this area. 

Schendel inquired about the drainage.  Dahlke stated that the project doesn’t trigger stormwater 
improvements, but the drainage that is proposed will actually improve the drainage for both properties. 

Schendel asked about snow removal and storage as none is indicated on the site plan.  Kolasa said that it 
depends on the year, but the River Inn has hauled snow away in the past. 

Barrett suggested signage in the proposed parking areas to make people aware that there are two 
entrances/exits. 

Barrett commented that expanding the pavilion makes sense as the storage buildings would be taken away 
or demolished. 

Dahlke thanked the Board for the feedback. 

New Business 
 None 
 
Reports and Announcements 
 Schendel reported that the motorcycles and some cars leaving Big Bore have been noisy lately.  He 
also asked if the yellow curb striping by the crosswalk on River Road and Mill Pond Trail could be 
lengthened so people wouldn’t park right up against the intersection. 
 Kuitunen asked whether parking on the grass is allowed.  Biren stated that parking has to occur on 
a dustless surface and parking on the grass is not permitted.  She also cited MS4 policies that would not 
allow it. 
 Barrett asked about decisions that Council had made after the July Planning Commission meeting.  
Nash replied that the Council had approved the RJT Downtown Subdivision, the site plan and variances for 
Big Bore, and the variance at 317 Riverview Circle.  Barrett asked what happens when Fehn is not following 
the IUP (interim use permit).  Nash replied that will have to be determined, but reminded the Board that 
Fehn has an application that is still active. 
 Barrett also asked about the County Road 19 Project and public engagement.  Biren said that WSB 
would be at the Hanover Harvest Festival with a booth and that public engagement sessions would occur 



after the festival.  Zajicek suggested having more details so he could “see driving down the road” and not 
just concepts.  Using Google Earth, Nash pulled up an example of a similar project in Chaska. 
 Kuitunen asked about the prairie restoration at the dentist’s office.  Biren said that it is a work in 
progress and that Prairie Restorations is working with the owner. 
 Nash reminded the Board that the August meeting has been moved to August 29th and that there 
would be a bigger agenda again.  She said that the River Inn would be back with the variances; the Highlands 
and Vistas at Crow River would be bringing back the preliminary plat; the Hilltop had resubmitted plans; 
and Rivers Edge Third Addition Final Plat.  Biren added that the time may be changed to an earlier start 
depending on the agenda. 
 Kolasa said that the Ice Cream Social at the Hanover History Center was great and Barrett agreed 
saying her family attended and then headed to the park for Concert in the Park. 
 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.   
Motion carried unanimously.  
Meeting adjourned at 7:43 pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
      
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 

 


